






























































































































































































































































































TSD Custodial Services RFP ‐ Bid #9822 

 

Vendors Questions Received  ‐  as of 3/24/16 ‐ 5:00 p.m. 

 

1. Is contractor to provide any vehicles as part of proposal 

a. The RFP does NOT require any vehicles be provided, however the Troy School District will not 

have any vehicles available for Contractor use regarding the Custodial Operations. 

 

2. Can completed bids be submitted prior to school break on Thursday March 31, 2016 before 10:30AM? 

a. Yes 

 

3. Performance bond has a “May be” required stipulation.  Are there any exceptions to the Bid Bond being 

required at time of bid? 

a. Performance Bond may be required so all bidders are to include the Performance Bond cost in 

the Pricing Proposal Form.  There are no exceptions to the Bid Bond being required at time of 

bid. 

 

4. Section 2.5.1 states that Consumable and Custodial supplies may be supplied by Contractor after the 

first year, depending on School District’s desire.   Is there an option to remain status quo and allow 

School District to continue that process?   Can it be changed to Mutually Agreed Upon? 

a. Yes, Yes 

 

5. Section III, Subsection G. Emergency Services.  Please define “After Hours” issues.   

a. After Hours issues are defined as Emergencies; which could be related to Security, 

Utilities/Power Outages System Failures (plumbing, HVAC) where the Contractor Manager is 

needed to report and review action needed as part of the Troy School District Operations Team 

(there would be no charge to the district for this).  If hourly staff is needed to support any such 

emergency those labor hours would be billable at the appropriate rate. 

 

6. If it is determined that the cause of the “After Hours” event is not by a member of my staff, would the 

Contractor still be able to bill School District accordingly? 

a. The Contract Manager Response would be at no charge to the district.  Hourly Staff (if required) 

would be billable to the school district at the appropriate rate. 

 

7. Will Troy School District still supplement those former District employees with Health Care and Salary 

contributions?  And if so, to what levels? 

a. The Troy School District currently provides an enhanced wage/benefit package to former Troy 

School District Employees.  The District intends to continue with this practice and will negotiate 

this item with the selected bidder at the appropriate time.  Not included as part of this RFP. 



 

8. Section 1.9.1.3 Please clarify Maintenance jobs that fall under the scope mentioned in the contract for 

Head custodians.  List of potential jobs would suffice. 

a. Samples of Light Maintenance we expect custodial staff to perform;  Toilet Flush Valve 

Repair/Replacement, Toilet Service (plunging & snaking with hand snake), Sink Faucet Repairs, 

Sink Service (plunging, wet vac, hand snake),  Air Filter Changes (unit ventilators, roof top units, 

air handlers, ceiling units), light bulb replacement, ceiling tile replacement, 

mounting/installation of (tack strips, tack boards, pencil sharpeners), door inspections, door 

hardware maintenance/identifying loose items and tightening  (handles, door closers, hinges), 

Touch Up Painting, Cove Base Installation/Repairs, Door Threshold Replacement/Repairs.  This 

list is meant to be representative of Light Maintenance Work Tasks and not all inclusive. 

 

9. Who will serve as District liaison?  

a. Rob Carson  

 

10. What is the Warehouse Driver’s specific chain of command? 

a. Work is scheduled; changes adjustments will be worked through the Contract Manager. 

 

11. Section IV: Contractor Personnel   Is it understood the 30‐minute return telephone call or contact is a 2‐

way street?  If fines could be levied on Contractors end, I assume the same standard of punctuality will 

be followed on the District’s end. 

a. Yes 

 

12. Please clarify exactly what you are looking for in terms of the FTE you have listed under Grounds 

category?  I thought I understood it to be that the FTE and Seasonal FTE are to do ALL of the Ground 

services.  All of the mowing, stripping sport fields, fertilizing…etc.  In addition, this staff would also be in 

charge of ALL of the snow plowing, salting…etc using your Districts equipment.  However, Rob, you 

mentioned using a 3rd party for the large mowing, or something to that effect.  Do you also use a 

Landscaping service for the Districts larger needs and supplement with having a small staff on hand for 

the tasks listed in the RFP? 

a. The Troy School District has a contract with a Seasonal Lawncare Company to perform mowing, 

trimming & edging at all school properties except for (Troy High School Athletic Fields & Athens 

High School General Turf & Athletic Fields).  The Grounds staff as required in this RFP is to 

provide the Grounds Tasks as identified in Attachment B‐2.  The intent for this staff is to perform 

these types of tasks as part of their daily schedule consisting of 40 hours per week.  This 

expectation is based on past years ability to complete these tasks with the same staffing levels.  

It is not meant to be all inclusive throughout the entire district. 

 

13. Will vehicles be supplied by district who will maintain insure and provide gas? 

a. All vehicles and equipment supplied by the Troy School District (this includes Custodial, Grounds 

& Warehouse Services) WILL be insured (as applicable) by the Troy School District and the fuel 

for all said items WILL also be supplied by Troy School District. 



14. Where is the point of demarcation for custodians. Examples would be helpful.  i.e.  Head Custodian 

changes filters, adjust belts, cleans and verifies operation of fan coil unit.  If a motor needs to be 

replaced in FCU or UV who would do work??  

a. Light Maintenance Only (see answer to Question 8 above). 

15. Who calibrates thermostat if pneumatics 

a. Troy School District Maintenance Staff maintains and repairs Pneumatic Thermostats. 

 

16. Who maintains circulating pumps 

a. Troy School District Maintenance Staff maintains and repairs Circulation Pumps. 

 

17. What level does Head Custodians deal with Boilers, is it checking daily operation and filling out log, 

adjusting and turning on boilers where necessary, check water treatment, blowing down boilers where 

necessary?  Who opens and cleans boiler for inspection?   

a. Day Custodians will be responsible for verifying boilers are in operation and reporting any 

trouble alarms/signals via email or work orders. 

b. Logs, Adjustments, Maintenance, Water Treatment & Cleaning of Boilers are all handled by Troy 

School District Maintenance Staff. 

 

18. Roof exhaust fans?  Who maintains? 

a. Troy School District Maintenance Staff maintains roof exhaust fans 

 

19. Assume all HVAC equipment containing refrigerant are handled by skilled trades 

a. Yes, Correct 

 

20. Is there a limit on size of air handlers that Head Custodians perform maintenance on vs. skilled trades? 

a. Custodians are only required to replace filters on air handlers; there is no size limit on air 

handlers for filter replacement by custodians. 

 

21. They mention replacing ballasts, always felt that someone needed an electrical license to supervise 

people doing this.  

a. Ballast Repair/Replacement will be handled by Troy School District Maintenance staff. 

 

22. Can quantities of consumable products used in the last year be provided?  

a.  

Product Total Cases Qty/Case

C‐Fold Towels 52 12/250

Roll Towels 1540 12

Small Toilet Tissue 27 96

Jumbo Toilet Tissue 1061 12

Liners ‐ Large 939 10‐250

Liners ‐ Small 95 150

Hand Soap  300 6

Hand Sanitizer 75 2



23. The custodial job matrix shows, all interior windows are listed to be cleaned weekly.  Are we safe to 

assume this means spot clean as needed and full clean yearly?  

a. Yes 

 

24. Courtyard maintenance is located under the custodial job matrix.  No lawn mowing equipment is listed 

under the equipment lists for the schools.  Is the intention that the contractor will provide lawn mowers 

for these areas or will grounds equipment be utilized?   

a. Lawn Maintenance Equipment WILL be provided by Troy School District for any custodial staff 

required to maintain courtyards. 

 

25. The job frequency matrix shows contractor is to spot clean and disinfect vertical surfaces daily in 

classrooms?  During the walkthrough it was noted that this really is to mean weekly.  Can we have 

confirmation that desktops/tables are to be completely cleaned and sanitized weekly?   

a. Vertical & Horizontal Surfaces should be spot cleaned daily as needed, Desktops should be 

cleaned and disinfected weekly. 

 

26. Currently vacuuming is performed daily in traffic & soiled areas and edge to edge vacuuming is 

performed weekly.  Is the intention that we perform edge to edge vacuuming daily as shown in the 

custodial job matrix?  

a. Yes, it is expected to perform edge to edge vacuuming on a daily basis. 

 

27. Page 14 2.5.1 (lasts sentence) states that the contractor shall be responsible to procure any necessary 

fuel/oil for any grounds equipment.  Is this referring to all grounds services or just the courtyard work 

and snow blowing?  

a. Troy School District WILL supply all fuel/oil for all grounds equipment both Custodial & Grounds 

Service Related. 

 

28. Can we have confirmation that if district owned equipment is worn out beyond repair it will be replaced 

by the district?   

a. Yes, if district owned equipment is worn out beyond repair it WILL be replaced by Troy School 

District. 

 

29. Page 4 E. of the contract states that the contractor is not to reduce staffing during breaks or summer 

vacation.  Can we have confirmation that there are to be no staff reductions during break periods?  

a. Yes, there are to be no staff reductions during break periods. 

 

30. Under the custodial job matrix it shows General Maintenance to be performed as needed: Furniture, 

plumbing, electrical.  Can we get a more complete list of maintenance items we are to perform?  Is the 

contractor required to replace ballasts and oil/grease HVAC equipment?  

a. See answer to Question 8 



31. The staffing plan we are asked to match for the base bid does not list out individuals who would be 

performing facility maintenance.  Is the intention that the staff shown on the staffing chart will perform 

these tasks?   

a. Facility Maintenance Tasks are typically performed by the Day Custodian, however that does not 

prevent any other Custodial Staff from performing these tasks when time/schedule permits. 

 

32. The Middle School buildings have 2 FTEs on the day staff where the High Schools have 1 FTE with a split 

shift FTE coming in at 10:30AM.  Is it felt this gives enough staffing for snow removal or is the intention 

that additional staffing comes in to assist?   

a. The Troy School District will have a Maintenance Position at each high school that will support 

the snow removal operations; therefore YES we feel the 1FTE at each high school will be able to 

perform the required snow removal responsibilities. 

 

33. Page 15 2.5.3 of the RFP states “All equipment maintenance will be performed by the district.”  The 

grounds job matrix states that the contractor is to perform oil changes, tune‐ups, seasonal services and 

upkeep.  Is the intention that the contractor will perform basic maintenance like oil changes and the 

district will cover larger repairs like a transmission going out? 

a. YES 

 

34. Can we have confirmation that if more grounds equipment is required the district will procure this 

equipment?  Example: Equipment for winterizing irrigation.   

a. YES 

 

35. It was stated on the walkthrough that for grounds we are to bid the listed staffing levels at 40 hours/wk 

and any hours above that should be billed separately.  Can we have confirmation on this?   

a. YES 

 

36. Are we correct that the grounds crew will be covering the cleaning of seating areas and athletic grounds 

after events?   

a. The grounds crew or custodial staffing will be responsible to clean the seating areas and athletic 

grounds after events.  If it is a school athletic event it will non billable and if it is a community 

activity or rental it will be billable. 

 

37. The RFP asks for a pre‐determined number of grounds personnel working 40 hours per week.  The RFP 

also lists out the tasks that are required to be performed.  If the grounds crew is working diligently and 

using overtime, and they are unable to keep up on the required tasks laid out in the RFP, is the intent 

that there is an understanding the contractor bid the required staffing?  Is the intention that the district 

will work through such scenarios with the contractor based on the staffing available and the most 

important tasks to be completed?     

a. The Grounds Staff Tasks are subject to weather and schedule changes therefore the Staffing 

Level as required in this RFP is based on past experience & expertise.  Therefore it is requested 

in this RFP to provide costing for the identified Grounds Staffing Levels at 40 hours a week. 



38. The current grounds staffing is 7 FTEs.  The requested staffing in the RFP is 4 FTEs.   Is snow removal to 

be a combined effort between the contractor and the district or is the intention that the contractor 

performs all snow removal with the 4 FTEs?   

a. The District has a plan for District‐Wide Snow Removal that is larger than what is requested in 

this RFP.  The 4 Grounds FTE will NOT be responsible for the snow removal of the entire Troy 

School District. 

 

39. Can we have confirmation that the district will cover the cost of all grounds supplies, provision of 

equipment, and large repairs?   Will the district be covering the cost of grounds fuel and supplies needed 

for minor maintenance repairs (oil, filters, blades, etc.)?   

a. YES, The Troy School District WILL supply all grounds supplies, equipment, fuels and associated 

items needed for equipment maintenance and minor repairs. 

b. The Contractor will be responsible for any and all damages due to neglect or misuse. 

 

40. Attachment C #14 states that snow removal is to occur when 2” or more of snow accumulates.  It also 

states that all lots and drives are to be kept in a “slip free” condition clear of snow and ice at all times.  

Lots and drives “slip free” and clear of ice and snow at all times does not coincide with snow removal 

when there is 2” or more of snow accumulated?  Can clarification be given on this as to the district’s 

intention?  

a. I cannot find this specific reference in Attachment C, however for clarification purposes.  The 

Troy School District threshold for snow removal is 2”.  Snowfall of 2” or greater require snow 

removal and 2” or less require salting.  The Director of Operations will make the determinations 

regarding snow removal and salting applications and it is the intent for the Grounds and 

Custodial staff to respond accordingly in support of providing safe sites for school operations. 

 

41. Page 11 C. of the contract.  Can you confirm the contractor is to provide all fuel for the warehouse 

delivery cube truck?   

a. The Troy School District WILL supply all fuel for the Warehouse Delivery Cube Truck. 

 

42. Page 11 C. of the contract.  Can you confirm that the contractor is to make all repairs to this vehicle?  If 

so, is the intention that the cube truck be kept to a standard that meets MDOT or any guidelines of 

vehicles that fall under municipality use? 

a. The Troy School District will cover all costs to maintain and make necessary repairs to the 

Warehouse Cube Truck. 

 

43. Page 11 C. of the contract.  Can you confirm that the contractor is to replace the cube truck if it has 

reached its useful life and requires replacement?   

a. The Troy School District will replace the Warehouse Delivery Cube Truck if it has reached its 

useful life and requires replacement. 

 

 



44. For Grounds to move mowers and any snow removal equipment from building to building will the 
contractor be responsible to provide the truck(s) and trailer(s) for this? 

a. The Troy School District WILL provide trucks and trailers as necessary to move mowers and snow 
removal equipment from building to building within the district. 
 

45. If contractor wishes to supplement or recommend any equipment there is no place on the pricing sheet 
or in the proposal response forms to put that do you want to us to create a line for that? 

a. Please submit any items not requested on the Pricing Proposal Form as a Voluntary Alternate 
and on a separate Proposal Form of your desire. 
   

46. You may want to put the pricing pages in a word document for vendors who do not have the capability 
of opening it up (not an issue for us, but I did hear a vendor ask how to get into the pricing form). 

a. The Pricing Proposal Forms have been modified with inserted text boxes for pricing costs. 
 

 

 

*Custodial Staff is responsible for all light bulb replacements; there are 7 lifts in the district for use (1 at 

each High and Middle Schools, 1 travelling lift for Elementary Schools.  The Contractor will be required for 

providing the necessary training and certification for appropriate/required staff to use Troy School District 

vertical lift machines. 

*Troy School District is in the 3rd year of a 9 year Bond Project ‐ there will be construction work in our 

schools and the cleaning program will adjust accordingly to support these projects. 



TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
FOR

CUSTODIAL, GROUNDS & WAREHOUSE SERVICES

Contractor Information

Contractor Name:

Business Address:

Contact Person: Telephone:

E-Mail: Fax:

A. CUSTODIAL SERVICES PRICING

This pricing is to reflect an award by the School District of ALL Custodial Services contemplated
in the RFP for ALL Facilities. The Custodial Services Proposal pricing shall be based the
Custodial Services frequencies and duties in the RFP. The Custodial Services Proposal pricing
shall also be based upon the School District securing all Consumable Supplies and Cleaning
Supplies in accordance with the terms and conditions of the RFP and Contract, and the Contractor
being permitted to utilize existing School District Equipment and the Contractor repairing and
replacing the Equipment, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the RFP and the Contract.
Accordingly, the Custodial Services Proposal pricing must be inclusive of all costs and expenses of
Contractor for all personnel and additional equipment necessary to perform the Custodial Services,
and are to be expressed as not-to-exceed amounts and all amounts are to include wages (both daily
and substitute personnel), benefits (both health and other benefits offered or required), overhead
and profit to perform all Custodial Services. These prices are to include Custodial Services
coverage Monday through Saturday at the High School Facilities and Monday through Friday at all
other Facilities provided that all School District-sponsored events Monday through Sunday at the
Facilities are including in the pricing, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the RFP and
the Contract.

CUSTODIAL SERVICES

Pricing Parameter 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 3 Year Total

Custodial Services

Custodial Services – Total Man Hours -
Management

Custodial Services – Total Man Hours - Labor N/A

Custodial Services – Total FTEs –
Management

N/A

Custodial Services – Total FTEs - Labor N/A
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B. GROUNDS SERVICES PRICING

This pricing is to reflect an award by the School District of ALL Grounds Services contemplated in
the RFP for ALL Facilities. The Grounds Services Proposal pricing shall be based the Grounds
Services frequencies and duties in the RFP. The Grounds Services Proposal pricing shall also be
based upon the School District securing all salt/ice melt accordance with the terms and conditions
of the RFP and Contract, and the Contractor being permitted to utilize existing School District
Equipment and the Contractor repairing and replacing the Equipment, in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the RFP and the Contract. Accordingly, the Grounds Services Proposal
pricing must be inclusive of all costs and expenses of Contractor for all personnel and additional
equipment necessary to perform the Grounds Services, and are to be expressed as not-to-exceed
amounts and all amounts are to include wages (both daily and substitute personnel), benefits (both
health and other benefits offered or required), overhead and profit to perform all Grounds Services.
These prices are to include Grounds Services coverage Monday through Sunday at no additional
charge.

GROUNDS SERVICES

Pricing Parameter 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 3 Year Total

Grounds Services

Grounds Services – Total Man Hours -
Management

Grounds Services – Total Man Hours - Labor N/A

Grounds Services – Total FTEs – Management N/A

Grounds Services – Total FTEs - Labor N/A

C. WAREHOUSE SERVICES PRICING

This pricing is to reflect an award by the School District of ALL Warehouse Services contemplated
in the RFP. The Grounds Services Proposal pricing shall be based the Warehouse Services duties
in the RFP. Accordingly, the Warehouse Services Proposal pricing must be inclusive of all costs
and expenses of Contractor for all personnel and additional equipment necessary to perform the
Warehouse Services, and are to be expressed as not-to-exceed amounts and all amounts are to
include wages (both daily and substitute personnel), benefits (both health and other benefits offered
or required), overhead and profit to perform all Warehouse Services.

WAREHOUSE SERVICES

Pricing Parameter 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 3 Year Total

Warehouse Services

Warehouse Services – Total Man Hours -
Management

Warehouse Services – Total Man Hours -
Labor

N/A

Warehouse Services – Total FTEs –
Management

N/A

Warehouse Services – Total FTEs - Labor N/A
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D. ADDITIONAL PRICING – Applicable under Proposal Pricing

PRICING INCREASE/DECREASE FOR PERMANENT ADDITION/REMOVAL OF PORTION OF THE SERVICES

Pricing Parameter ½ FTE 1 FTE

Lead Custodian

Day Custodian

Night Custodian

Grounds Personnel

Warehouse Personnel

CUSTODIAL & WAREHOUSE SERVICES HOURLY PRICING – For Additional Services Requested under Contract

Pricing Parameter 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019

Hourly Rate

Weekend Rate

Holiday Rate

Emergency Rate

GROUNDS SERVICES HOURLY PRICING – For Additional Services Requested under Contract

Pricing Parameter 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019

Hourly Rate

Weekend Rate

Holiday Rate

Emergency Rate

MISCELLANEOUS PRICING ITEMS

Pricing Parameter 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018

Price Per Square Foot if Scope of Custodial Services Reduced

Cleaning Supplies Alternate N/A

Consumable Supplies Alternate N/A

Performance Bond
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E. WAGES AND BENEFITS OFFERED BY CONTRACTOR

As set forth in the RFP, the Contractor’s rates and pricing shall include the wages and benefits
offered to its employees, including health benefits and/or other benefits offered to Contractor’s
employees. The Contractor shall include in its Proposal the wages and benefits that will be offered
to its employees who perform the Services.

F. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA TO THE RFP

The Contractor acknowledges the following addenda that were issued to the RFP:

Addendum Number Date

1 __________________

2 __________________

3 __________________

G. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF TERMS & AUTHORIZATION

The undersigned Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the School District reserves, in its sole
and absolute discretion, the right: (i) to accept or reject, in whole or in part, any and all Proposals
received in response to this RFP; (ii) to waive informalities and irregularities in the RFP process;
(iii) to award the Contract to other than the Contractor with the lowest financial Proposal; and (iv)
to award the Contract to one (1) or more Contractors. If awarded the services, the Contractor
agrees to enter into the form of Contract with the School District, and to furnish the services in
strict accordance with, this RFP and the Contract. By submitting a Proposal, the Contractor
certifies that its Proposal, as submitted, complies with all terms and conditions as set forth in this
RFP, unless specifically enumerated as an exception as part of its Proposal.

Contractor Name: ________________________________________________________

Authorized Individual Name: _______________________________________________

Position/Title:____________________________________________________________

Signature: _______________________________________________________________

Date: _________________________

204260536.2 21968/127691
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TSD Custodial Services RFP ‐ Bid #9822 

Addendum # 3  

Clarification 

 

Addendum #1 ,  Question 3 

Question 

3. Performance bond has a “May be” required stipulation.  Are there any exceptions to the Bid Bond being 

required at time of bid? 

  Answer 

a. Performance Bond may be required so all bidders are to include the Performance Bond cost in 

the Pricing Proposal Form.  There are no exceptions to the Bid Bond being required at time of bid. 

 

Clarification to Answer  

  Pursuant to the RFP as  issued by the School District, each Contractor  is required to  include a 5% Bid 

  Bond as part of its proposal.   If Contractor desires to submit a proposal with a different amount of a 

  Bid Bond or not include a Bid Bond in its proposal, the Contractor may elect to take exception to the 

  Bid Bond requirement, or any other requirement of the RFP but the Contractor must clearly state such 

  exception,  and  the  basis  therefore,  in  its  Proposal  so  that  the  School District may  understand  the 

  exception. 

 

 



RFP 9822 Custodial, Grounds & Warehouse Services
Tabulation

Custodial Services Grounds Services Warehouse Services
Vendor 2016-17 FTE's 2017-18 FTE's 2018-19 FTE's 3 Year Total 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 3 Year Total 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 3 Year Total

ABM Building Services, LLC $3,424,500.00 80.7 $3,424,500.00 80.7 $3,486,200.00 80.7 $10,335,200.00 $223,234.00 $223,234.00 $227,000.00 $673,468.00 $45,000.00 $45,000.00 $46,200.00 $136,200.00

Auxilio, Inc $2,928,105.00 76.5 $2,928,105.00 76.5 $2,928,105.00 76.5 $8,784,315.00 $137,850.00 $137,850.00 $137,850.00 $413,550.00 $86,575.00 $86,575.00 $86,575.00 $259,725.00

* a) Clean-Ed, LLC  Proposal #1 $2,985,000.00 79.0 $2,985,000.00 79.0 $2,985,000.00 79.0 $8,955,000.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

* b) DM Burr Group $2,771,195.46 78.5 $2,771,195.46 78.5 $2,771,195.46 78.5 $8,313,586.38 $255,434.21 $255,434.21 $255,434.21 $766,302.63 $39,751.53 $39,751.53 $39,751.33 $119,254.39

Enviro-Clean Services, Inc. $2,848,988.00 79.75 $2,848,988.00 79.75 $2,848,988.00 79.75 $8,546,963.00 $286,893.00 $286,893.00 $286,893.00 $860,679.00 $46,012.00 $46,012.00 $46,012.00 $138,036.00

GCA Services Group $3,029,749.00 76.0 $3,029,749.00 76.0 $3,029,749.00 76.0 $9,089,247.00 $286,149.00 $286,149.00 $286,149.00 $858,447.00 $41,927.00 $41,927.00 $41,927.00 $125,781.00

Alternates

* a) Clean-Ed, LLC  Proposal #2 $3,055,000.00 84.0 $3,055,000.00 84.0 $3,055,000.00 84.0 $9,165,000.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

* b) DM Burr Group $2,931,917.24 88.5 $2,931,917.24 88.5 $2,931,917.24 88.5 $8,795,751.72 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

4/4/2016




